
Page 1 of 10 

                                                 
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                    
 
 

 
 
 

GREENHEAD COLLEGE CORPORATION 

Minutes of the Finance & Estates Committee 

Monday 3 February 2025, 4.30pm 
Held in Upper Greenhead House, Greenhead College 

Governors present: 
Chris Kneale; Connie Laing; John Holroyd (Chair); Mo Bunter; 
Richard Armstrong; Stuart Taberner (until 18.33) 

In attendance 
Lauren Metcalfe (DoFF); Sarah Walters (DoEO);Sharon Roper 
(Clerk)  

Apologies: Frankie Robinson; Mohammed Usman 

Governor Attendance: 75% attendance 

  
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

 
1. Welcome, 
apologies, 
chairing 
 

 
Prior to the meeting start, SWA led a DfE new build site visit 
for governors.  
JHO welcomed participants.  
Apologies as above. 
 

 
 

 
2. Declarations 
 

 
RAR said that he will raise an item about the pay award in 
the ‘any other business’ section of the meeting, CKN 
declared an interest as a member of staff.   
 

 
 

 
3. F&E Minutes 
11/11/24 and CDC 
minutes 27/11/24 
 

 
3.1 Finance & Estates minutes 11/11/24 and Capital 
Development Committee minutes 27/11/24, previously 
circulated. 
F&E minutes 11/11/24 approved by Committee, signed by 
Chair, returned to Clerk for filing. 
CDC minutes 27/11/24 approved by F&E Committee, 
signed by CDC Chair, returned to Clerk for filing. 
 
3.2  Matters arising not covered on agenda: 
Action Log document, previously circulated. 
1. (30/9/24 Min 5.4) Benchmarking data around teaching 
costs will build up over time in the management accounts – 
propose to close this action (9).  
2. (30/9/24 Min 10.3.5) New Strategic Plan was presented 
at Corporation 9/12/24 – propose to close this action (10). 
3. (30/9/24 Min 4.1.10) Question about Barclays paying 
interest on GC’s balance with them. JHO asked about 

 
 
 
 
 
Clerk 
 
Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 10 

maximising interest on the balance – LME is in discussions 
with Barclays about this. 
4. Reserves Policy – Clerk explained this was an action 
from a past A&R meeting where the internal auditors asked 
that this policy is reviewed. F&E committee will review this 
policy on 24/3/25.  
5. F&E members approved closure of the actions: 
4-9-10-13-14-15-16-17-18-19-20-26-27-28-29 
 

 
 
 
 
Clerk for 
agenda 

 
4. Finance  

 
4.1 F&E committee members noted October and 
November management accounts and narratives, and 
reviewed December management accounts and narrative, 
all previously circulated.  
 
LME summarised key points:   
1. LME asked for feedback on the new format of the 
management accounts document – governors liked the new 
format.  
RAR asked for the month to be detailed on the front cover.  
CLA asked if such detailed information is necessary for 
each month’s accounts and is mindful of LME’s workload.   
MBR said that LME’s experience in her previous role was to 
have one Finance meeting and one Corporation meeting 
per term and there has been an impact on LME 
operationally and strategically due to the regularity of GC’s 
Corporation and committee meeting schedule. 
F&E members agreed that the new document is produced 
for the most recent month’s accounts which will be 
reviewed, and the other accounts only need two paragraphs 
of executive summary and are to note.  
2. The current position of the year end deficit is higher than 
the budget mainly due to the lack of clarity around the  
teachers’ pay award. A 5.5% pay award for teachers has 
been added into the management accounts and this has 
been accrued in actuals. 
The support staff pay award of 2% has been refused, 4% 
has been left in the budget for support staff and this is 
accrued in the actuals. 
3. The Bursary audit prompted a review of how bursary is 
facilitated. Changes had already been made to the process 
before the audit took place. The audit checked items from 
the previous academic year, and this resulted in £95,000 of 
college money being added back into the Bursary Fund and 
this will hit the college accounts and affect the year end 
position. 
4. These deficits will be partially offset by additional 
government funding of £195,000 to help the college run 
from 1/4/25. MBR said it is to cover the pay award of 5.5% 
from April.  
RAR asked when the money will arrive – there is no 
notification of when funding will be received. 
RAR asked if this will cause a detrimental cash flow in the 
interim – yes it will. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LME 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LME 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 10 

5. The current position is a surplus of £178,000, but the 
Bursary audit has not yet been allocated, the cold weather 
will cause increased heating costs and examination fees of 
£250,000 invoiced earlier than usual. Utilities are tracking 
healthily, with the same usage but lower costs.  
6. Cash is currently in a surplus position but there is 
planned expenditure to come. 
7. Some capital items which were accounted for in the 
summer have hit the accounts in the autumn, causing a 
timing difference. There has been a greater capital spend 
particularly with IT, PDI is working on an IT replacement 
plan which will help with future IT capital investment.   
8. Budget to actuals shows a negative variance of 
£178,376. The main driver is general expenses.  
9. LME said the positive variance for utilities will continue, a 
cheaper gas contract starts in April 2025 and the electric 
contract ends in April 2027 when a cheaper, greener 
contract can be sought. Hirst building has made a positive 
impact on the utility bills.  
10. RAR asked about the Managing Public Money rules for 
our existing loan and if the loan facility can be changed 
without applying for a new loan.  
LME said GC has two loans, one ends in January 2027 and 
the other finishes December 2025 when a balancing 
payment of £500,000 is due.   
RAR asked if the loans can be retained by repaying interest 
not capital to make cash available for other projects.  
JHO asked about depreciation of £1.2 million this year, how 
quickly GC will use its cash reserves, future cash flows and 
spending on fixed asset investments.   
JHO asked for updates on what GC will be spending on 
capital expenditure and what this means to the cash flow 
over the next few years.  
SWA said the asset management plan came to F&E last 
academic year and this is a five-year plan which is starting 
to build. There are numerous projects currently being 
considered.  
JHO said depending on information brought to F&E on 
24/3/25 will determine how the existing loans should be 
managed and then LME can check if extending the existing 
loans is an option.  
11. JHO asked about the action raised at CDC meeting for 
forecasts for the next 10 to 20 years – LME thought this 
was requested to ensure that the potential rebuild of 
Rostron building was factored into future plans. JHO 
suggested changing this action to long term cash flows. 
SWA said that her estate planning covers the next five 
years, and replacement of Rostron will not be overlooked.   
12. RAR said that future strategic decisions are required 
with worked up proposals ready to submit when capital 
funding becomes available.  
SWA confirmed this is being formulated, and growth can be 
achieved in the current estate with efficiencies. SWA said 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LME 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 4 of 10 

the student numbers that GC currently wants to achieve is 
2900.  
MBR said the quality of experience for students and staff is 
important and the demographic of 16- to 19-year-olds slows 
down in 2028/29.  SWA said the GC site can accommodate 
a finite number and the proposed improvements to the 
estate will ensure a strong student experience with good 
facilities.  
RAR said that we currently receive 3000 applications for 
1400 spaces and the future demographic slowdown will 
only reduce student numbers to 2024/25 levels. Another 
factor to consider is that Kirklees have a target to build 1600 
new homes per year.   
RAR asked about a cap of 2900 students which has 
strategic implications about the priorities for GC and how it 
manages recruitment of its students. 
MBR said recruitment is based on trends and space – a 
whole site appraisal has taken place, and the approach is 
well thought out.   
SWA said although GC is not proceeding with the Hirst 
building remodel, this is still an option for the future which 
could create additional student numbers. SWA said there is 
a realistic downward trend in 2030, and this will inevitably 
affect GC.   
RAR asked for a discussion at Strategy Day about the 
future of GC into the next five to six years. 
JHO asked for a five-year asset management plan feeding 
into the forecasts ready for Strategy Day.  
13. RAR asked if it was worth investing in a second solar 
battery array on the roof – the existing battery has never 
fully charged, there will be further investigation into how it 
works and if another array is worthwhile.  
14. RAR asked about earning more interest on our bank 
balance, only £1.5 million is currently earning interest – 
LME intends to invest £3 million in total and is looking at 
other platforms to invest in.  
JHO asked why more platforms are needed – LME will 
compare platforms, review the savings options and see if 
cheaper fees are available. 
JHO asked for the review of investment platforms to be 
completed because GC is losing interest by not investing 
more funds.  
15. JHO asked about the contributions to capital of 
£404,202 – LME said it is the money spent on capital items 
so far, over the deficit.  
16. JHO asked about a recent settlement arrangement and 
asked if this is within reporting limits – it is.  
17. JHO asked about the variance when extra staff were not 
included at budgeting – staff changes will be discussed 
much earlier this year and captured in the budget.  
18. RAR asked if a draft budget will be ready for F&E 
24/3/25.  
19. CLA asked when staff leave do they receive the 
backdated pay award – they do not.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MBR 
 
LME/SWA 
 
 
 
SWA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LME 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 5 of 10 

20. RAR asked about the financial health rating moving 
from outstanding to good due to ‘performance’ figures – 
LME said performance measures are driven by the bottom 
line with accountancy transactions removed, she will add 
further narrative to this section of the accounts document. 
RAR asked if there are any actions that can improve the 
‘performance’ indicator – LME will sense check it and 
consult the guidelines.   
 
4.2 Fixed Asset Register, previously circulated –  
F&E members noted the Fixed Asset Register– there were 
no questions or comments from members.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LME 

 
5. Course Viability 
paper 

 
MBR summarised the Course Viability paper, previously 
circulated, highlights included:   
 
1. The breakeven point for each subject (the number of 
students that will make the figure positive) will be added to 
this document in due course.  
2. Drama was used as an example, with a deficit of 
£70,000, fifty enrolled students would make the course 
breakeven. There are currently twenty A1 drama students 
and six A2 drama students. The demand is not there in this 
year’s applications and there is not enough capacity in the 
accommodation for fifty students. 
3. CLT will use breakeven data to inform wider strategies 
and decisions. CLT and governors do not want to become a 
STEM only college.   
4. Film Studies, with a deficit of £6689, needs two additional 
students to break even. Subjects’ breakeven points will be 
considered, applications will be interrogated, and this will 
inform marketing strategies and school liaison.  
5. To study German A Level, students must have German 
GCSE which local partner schools do not offer. German has 
a £32000 deficit. MBR said it might be more realistic to 
specialise in French and Spanish. Further work on the data 
will follow with ideas to grow numbers.  
RAR asked CLT to find out which schools offer German and 
these should be targeted, including private schools. JHO 
agreed that marketing should be sent to parents and 
students from private schools. 
STR has made a governor visit to MFL and found an issue 
with conversion and feels more can be done to improve 
this, applications are in line with what he has seen 
elsewhere.  
STR was surprised that MFL department has no links with 
local universities, and STR will continue to support the MFL 
department.   
6. STR asked about the different Maths courses and if they 
were considered as one subject the costs could be shared.  
7. STR asked about the Arts subjects, what price is put on 
student mix and the deficit amount that will be considered 

 
 
 
 
 
 
JRA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JRL 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 6 of 10 

acceptable. MBR would like to protect the breadth of 
curriculum where possible.  
8. CKN asked for Health & Social Care to be added into the 
paper. 
9. CLA asked about the cost and student numbers for 
Drama – MBR said that HNC offer A Level Dance, Drama 
and Theatre Studies and Performing Arts.  
SWA said that CLT are discussing increasing growth 
subjects to buffer the costs of deficit subjects and how this 
can be achieved within the capacity of the estate.  
10. RAR said that GC is now the only college that offers 
Music A Level, BTEC and Music Performance within thirty 
miles. RAR asked that Musica are approached so we can 
make their students away of GC’s offer.  
LME said the bigger picture of being the only A Level 
provider of a subject is considered alongside results and 
student feedback.  
11. JHO said the cost of teachers in the Arts subjects are 
higher than the income. LME said that these subjects also 
have technician support.  
MBR said that the course viability report will help formulate 
more sophisticated marketing and estates strategies.  
12.JHO asked for the next steps with course viability – MBR 
said this will come to Strategy Day together with strategies 
around subject growth and how the estate can 
accommodate this. 

 
JRA 
 
JRA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JRL 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MBR 

 
6. Update on 
Estate 
Management and 
Cooksey Building 
report  

 
F&E committee members reviewed the Estates report, and 
noted the Cooksey Building report, all previously circulated.  
 
SWA highlighted the following: 
1. The premises manager left at Christmas and has been 
replaced internally; interviews for the vacancy this has 
created will be held next week.  
2. A staircase in Rostron building had legacy issues, this 
has been fixed.  
Water has been coming through the ceiling in Rostron, the 
roof membrane has been causing condensation, drilling the 
membrane appears to have worked and the roof continues 
to be monitored. A quote to remove the membrane is more 
than £150,000.  
There are no other issues that are foreseen medium to long 
term in Rostron building.  
3. The Cooksey building remedial heating works are going 
out to tender in February. A phased approach will be taken, 
some of the works will start at Easter and continue at 
summer half term to try and alleviate some of the heating 
issues before the warmer summer months.  
SWA will be communicating details of the works with the 
relevant Hods shortly.  
4. In Park Building the soundproofing has worked for the PE 
department, further soundproofing will continue at Easter.  
5. Current handover date for the DfE build is 18/7/25. DfE 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 7 of 10 

have confirmed this is a hard handover date and GT are 
aware of the exam period at GC.   
A Health & Social Care exam was held in Rostron in 
January and the building works continued without incident.  
6. The newly introduced Smartlog system is a robust 
compliance and testing system which will identify trends 
and SWA will provide assurance to governors by sharing 
some of the data and reports.   
7. There was an error on the CIF bids for the fire door and 
main building roof replacement, the consultant’s assumed 
GC is an academy and have omitted VAT from the figures 
in the bid. 
The consultants will be asked to reduce their commission, 
and they will look at building efficiencies into the projects.  
There is also scope for GC to complete some of the works 
itself which will be cheaper.   
RAR asked when the outcome of the CIF bids will be 
announced – it will be April or May 2025. 
RAR asked if fire door replacement has started – it hasn’t, 
although in the upcoming soundproofing works new fire 
doors will be fitted.   
If CIF is successful, the contractor will start on 14/7/25.  
RAR asked about putting pressure on the government or 
generating publicity regarding health and safety concerns 
while waiting for the outcome of CIF.  
LME asked if this was a risk and might affect the success of 
the bid. 
MBR has raised health and safety issues and the CIF bids 
with all the MPs she has met this academic year.  
If unsuccessful GC will appeal.  
SWA will have a contingency project ready if the bid is not 
successful and fire door work will start in one of the 
buildings.  
8. KNO will chase the planning department about lifting the 
planning condition, a response was expected on 19/1/25.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SWA 

 
7. Catering 
 

 
7. SWA summarised the Catering update, which was 
included in the Estates Report, previously circulated: 
 
1. The customer facing side of the catering provision is 
strong and better than Aramark and it’s a positive 
experience for everyone who uses the service.   
7.2. – 7.14. This is confidential.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
8. Sustainability 
Action Plan 

 
LME summarised the Sustainability Action Plan, previously 
circulated: 
 
1. Sustainability is embedded in the Strategic and 
Operational plans, and it feeds into every operational goal.  
2. LME and SST (Sustainability Lead) regularly look to 
target easy wins like recycling. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 8 of 10 

3. The new process for trips and the costing sheets has 
seen sustainability charges that can be used for carbon 
literacy training and tree planting trips. 
The costing sheet starts the sustainability conversation, if 
the full amount is not charged, an activity should be run to 
offset the carbon footprint. 
The trips process is beginning to provoke a mindset and 
culture shift, 
4. SST has links to Local Authorities, communities and 
charities, regularly attends events and continually brings 
sustainability ideas to GC.  
He is facilitating further carbon literacy training targeting 
CLT and HoDs.  
5. Weekly reprographic data is produced for CLT, and it 
highlights the departments and staff who print the most.  
Students now have printer credits, and this has significantly 
reduced their printing.  
CKN has seen an additional benefit of study rooms 
becoming much tidier. 
6. A carbon footprint calculator will be produced, and work 
is underway on a base line starting point of 2019.  
7. LME attended a course about getting to net zero and will 
look at little wins to implement especially around the estate. 
The key driver is that it is embedded into operational goals.  
8. MBR said that it is important that everyone takes 
accountability at all levels including governors. 
9. RAR said that it’s important to influence the student body 
in regard to sustainability – MBR added that staff buy-in is 
also important.   
10. RAR asked how long it will take to get a sustainability 
measurement because one of the targets is a year-on-year 
reduction – LME is confident the college has reduced from 
the base line point of 2019. Hirst is a net zero building and 
there are no trips with long haul flights.   
11. RAR said that scope one and two measurements have 
already been done and asked for a comparison to be made.  
12. JHO asked how often the Sustainability Committee 
meets – it meets every half term. 
13. LME will bring a summary to F&E meetings; the 
Sustainability strategic priorities will be discussed at 
Corporation at the end of the AY when data is available to 
share.  
14. It was agreed that Sustainability has F&E committee 
oversight. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LME 
 
 
 

 
9. New Build Risk 
Register 
 

 
The New Build Risk Register and Summary were 
considered by committee members, previously circulated. 
 
E11 – catering contract has been added as a risk.  
E24H – Project schedule and any changes. This has been 
moved to monitor. CLT are regularly updated about the 
project schedule.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 9 of 10 

T3H – Loss of infrastructure. Several evening power downs 
have taken place to reinstate what happened last year, with 
the main work being done at February half term 2025. A fail 
safe has been installed into Greenhead House for IT 
servers. greenhead house separate power, feed to servers, 
supports. 
 

 
10. Procurement 
Updates 

 
Procurement update was included in the Estates Report, 
previously circulated. 
 
Waste Management: 
New recycling legislation comes into effect on 31/3/25 and 
this has been considered within the procurement.  
Moving to a new supplier makes an annual saving of £4995. 
Waste stream data will be provided which will feed into the 
Sustainability Strategy.  
RAR asked about communications to students about 
recycling – marketing will produce a campaign to raise the 
profile of correct bin usage.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
11. Policies to 
review 
 

 
Bursary Policy - 
The Bursary auditors recommended a good example of a 
Bursary Policy and LME has enhanced GC’s existing policy 
using the example.   
JHO asked how the Bursary Fund works – this money is 
received from DfE, and it is passed onto students. This sits 
on the balance sheet; any unspent money is returned to 
DfE.  
JHO asked if this will be tightly managed – LME confirmed 
that it will.   
 
F&E members approved the Bursary Policy. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
12. Any other 
business 

 
1. RAR asked MBR to update F&E members on the current 
teacher’s pay dispute. 
2. MBR said that the unions have postponed the upcoming 
strikes on the understanding that the discussions between 
the unions and NJC (National Joint Council) continue 
around the disparity between Sixth Form College teachers 
and school and academy teachers pay awards.   
An agreement has been made that back pay of 3.5% from 
September can be paid prior to the new tax year.   
3. Local union representatives have been incorrectly 
advised that colleges can pay the difference to their staff.  
SFCA confirmed to MBR that the pay award agreed is 3.5% 
from 1/9/24 and 5.5% from 1/4/25 only.  
4. – 10. This is confidential.  
 
11. JHO asked if GC receives the value back from the 
apprenticeship levy – the full amount is not recouped, some 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 10 of 10 

courses have been removed, and apprentices have to be 
offered a full-time job at the end of the scheme. 
JHO asked that this is maximised as much as possible.  

 
 
 
 

 
13. Confidentiality 

 
Catering update, settlement agreement, and proposed pay 
award. 

 

 
14. Date next mtg 
 

 
Next F&E; Monday 24 March 25, 4.30pm, at College  
 

 
 
 

 
 
Minutes prepared by Sharon Roper (Clerk to the Corporation) on 12/3/25 
 
Approved & signed by Chair, John Holroyd on 24/3/25 


